GROWTH MANAGEMENT ACT STEERING COMMITTEE MEETING

June 20, 2024

Anticipated start time is 9:30 a.m. following the SCOG Transportation Policy Board meeting In Person: <u>Burlington City Council Chambers</u>, 833 South Spruce Street, Burlington, WA 98233

Remote: <u>GoToMeeting</u> Dial In: 1 (877) 309-2073 Access Code: 791-317-269

AGENDA

- 1. Call to Order and Roll Call Commissioner Peter Browning, Skagit County, Chair
- **2.** Written Public Comments Mark Hamilton, Skagit Council of Governments
- 3. Verbal Public Comments
- 4. Consent Agenda
 - a. Approval of March 20, 2024 Growth Management Act Steering Committee Meeting Minutes
- 5. Action Items
 - a. <u>Countywide Planning Policies Update regarding Housing, Climate and Resiliency</u> Kevin Murphy, Skagit Council of Governments
- 6. Next Meeting: September 18, 2024, Time TBD, Burlington City Council Chambers and Remote
- 7. Adjourned

Meeting Packet

GROWTH MANAGEMENT ACT STEERING COMMITTEE OFFICERS

GROWTH MANAGEMENT ACT STEERING COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP AND VOTES

Anacortes1	Lyman
Burlington1	Mount Vernon
Concrete1	
Hamilton1	5
La Connor	O ,

QUORUM REQUIREMENT

A quorum consists of a majority (6) of the members (11).

Title VI Notice to the Public: The Skagit Council of Governments fully complies with Title VI of the federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related statutes, and does not discriminate on the basis of race, color or national origin. For more information, or to obtain a Title VI Complaint Form, visit SCOG's website at http://scog.net/about/nondiscrimination/.

Aviso resumido del Título VI al público: El Consejo de gobiernos de Skagit cumple plenamente con el Título VI de la Ley federal de derechos civiles de 1964 y los estatutos relacionados, y no discrimina por motivos de raza, color u origen nacional. Para mayor información, o para obtener un Formulario de queja del Título VI, visite el sitio web del SCOG en http://scog.net/about/nondiscrimination/.

ADA Notice to the Public: The Skagit Council of Governments fully complies with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) and does not discriminate on the basis of disability. For more information, or to file a grievance contact the ADA Coordinator, Kevin Murphy at 360-416-7871 or kmurphy@scog.net.

Aviso de la ADA para el público: El Consejo de Gobiernos de Skagit cumple plenamente con la Sección 504 de la Ley de Rehabilitación de 1973 y la Ley de Americanos con Discapacidades de 1990 (ADA) y no discrimina por motivos de discapacidad. Para obtener más información, o para presentar una queja, póngase en contacto con el Coordinador de la ADA, Kevin Murphy en 360-416-7871 or kmurphy@scog.net.

GROWTH MANAGEMENT ACT STEERING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES

March 20, 2024 Burlington City Council Chambers

MEMBERS PRESENT

Commissioner Peter Browning, Skagit County, Chair; Mayor Bill Aslett, City of Burlington, Vice-Chair; Mayor Matt Miller, City of Anacortes; Mayor Peter Donovan, City of Mount Vernon; Mayor Marna Hanneman, Town of La Conner; Commissioner Lisa Janicki, Skagit County; Mayor Julia Johnson, City of Sedro-Woolley; and Commissioner Ron Wesen, Skagit County.

STAFF PRESENT

Kevin Murphy, Executive Director; Debbie Carter, Executive Assistant and Clerk of the Board; Mark Hamilton, Senior Transportation Planner; Grant Johnson, Associate Planner and Sarah Ruether, Associate Planner.

OTHERS PRESENT

The following members of the Growth Management Act Technical Advisory Committee (GMATAC) attended the meeting: John Coleman, City of Anacortes; Brad Johnson and Miranda Sires, City of Burlington; and Robby Eckroth, Shelley Kjos, George Kosovich and Tara Satushek, Skagit County.

One member of the public attended the meeting.

AGENDA

- 1. Call to Order and Roll Call: Commissioner Browning called the meeting of the Growth Management Act Steering Committee (GMASC) to order at 10:08 a.m. Roll was taken with a quorum present.
- 2. Written Public Comments: Mr. Hamilton said a public comment period for the meeting was held from March 13–19, with no public comments received.

3. Consent Agenda

a. Approval of December 20, 2023 Growth Management Act Steering Committee Meeting Minutes: Mayor Miller moved to approve the December 20, 2023 Growth Management Act Steering Committee Meeting Minutes. Mayor Johnson seconded motion and it carried unanimously.

4. Action Items

a. Election of Vice-Chair: Commissioner Browning asked if there were any nominations for the Vice-Chair position.

Mayor Johnson moved to nominate Mayor Aslett for Vice-Chair of the GMASC. Commissioner Janicki seconded motion and it carried unanimously.

5. Discussion Items

a. Draft Countywide Planning Policies for Housing: Mr. Murphy presented on the following three subjects for this discussion item: (1) Revision to Urban Growth Countywide Planning Policy; (2) Revisions to Housing Countywide Planning Policy; and (3) Revisions to Growth Allocations Procedures. He started off this discussion with some background and context, pointing out that last year the work program was amended to begin working on revising the Skagit County Countywide Planning Policies to relate to new requirements in the Growth Management Act introduced under House Bill 1220. SCOG staff has been working with the Growth Management Technical Advisory Committee since then, with the committee discussing draft deletions and additions included in the meeting packet. Mr. Murphy went through each draft revision in detail.

GMASC members discussed the draft revisions and asked Mr. Murphy several questions on this agenda item. Mr. Murphy answered questions and said the GMATAC would likely have a recommendation for the June GMASC meeting that could then be brought to local legislative bodies and the public for review and feedback, consistent with the process described in the 2002 Framework Agreement.

- 6. Next Meeting: The next meeting is June 20, 2024, with the meeting start time to be determined, at the Burlington City Council Chambers and remote.
- 7. Adjourned: The meeting adjourned at 10:32 a.m.

Respectfully Submitted,	
	Date:
Kevin Murphy, Executive Director	
Skagit Council of Governments	
Approved,	
	Date:
Commissioner Peter Browning, Skagit County	
Growth Management Act Steering Committee Chair	

COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES UPDATE REGARDING HOUSING, CLIMATE AND RESILIENCY

Recommendation

The Growth Management Act Technical Advisory Committee (GMATAC) recommends adoption of the following revisions to the <u>Countywide Planning Policies</u>.

Background

The 2023 GMA Support Work Program and Budget included the task:

GMA Task 3 - Policy Support:

Task 3.1 Countywide Planning Policy Updates

- A. **Housing-** Review and update the CCPs to address recent legislative changes, such as HB 1220. In addition, consider amending the CCP's to address the following housing topics:
 - Add policy language aimed at significantly increasing housing production within existing UGAs in areas with good access to transit, jobs, and services.
 - Add policy language addressing the siting of publicly funded or subsidized housing, including permanent supportive housing, transitional housing, shelters, and housing for populations with special needs.
 - Add policy language addressing coordination with publicly funded housing authorities.
- B. Climate- Review and update the CCP's to address recent legislative changes, such as HB 1181. GMA Goal 14 was adopted in 2023 Section 14: Climate Change and Resiliency. This GMA goal requires that comprehensive plans, development regulations, and regional policies, plans and strategies under RCW 36.70A.201 and Chapter RCW 47.80 adapt to and mitigate the effects of a changing climate, support reductions in greenhouse gas emissions and per capita vehicle miles traveled; prepare for climate impact scenarios; foster resiliency to climate impacts and natural hazards; protect and enhance environmental, economic, and human health and safety; and advance environmental justice. Proposed revisions presented to the Countywide Planning policies in the linked document address these new legislative requirements under GMA goal 14.

Work on Task 3 began in late 2023 and has been discussed monthly at the GMATAC Planners meetings since then. The proposed CCP changes requested by the GMASC has additions underlined ("additions") and deletions struck through ("deletions").

The GMATAC reviewed the requested amendment language at their May and June 2024 meetings and recommends adopting the amendment language presented in the redline CCP document linked to this memo. The GMATAC supports the proposed updates of the Countywide Planning Policies to bring them into compliance with new legislation for housing (HB 1220) and new legislation for climate change (HB 1181).

Next Steps

The <u>2002 Framework Agreement</u> includes Section 6: Role with Legislative Bodies (Page 8), which highlights the importance of referring draft CPPs to member jurisdictions at the earliest possible time, to provide meaningful opportunity for public comment and solicit input from city-town councils and the County Commissioners. The Framework Agreement explicitly states that the GMA Committee, which is composed of the GMASC and GMATAC, shall not substitute for or replace duties and responsibilities of member jurisdiction legislative bodies.

To meet the intent of the Framework Agreement, SCOG staff recommends that Framework Agreement members shepherd these proposed changes to the Countywide Planning Policies to update with HB 1220 Housing and HB 1181 Climate through local processes to gather feedback from legislative bodies and the public. Any feedback received should be provided in writing to SCOG staff by August 16, 2024, so that it may be compiled and presented to the GMASC prior to the September meeting.

As the recommending authority to County Commissioners, the GMASC may choose to make a recommendation on CPPs in September, or at a future meeting. County Commissioners may take one of two actions on any CPP recommendation from the GMASC:

- 1. Adopt any new CPP or CPP amendment proposed by the GMASC, but not change the proposed CPP or CPP amendment in any manner whatsoever; or
- 2. Decline to adopt any new CPP or CPP amendment proposed by the GMASC.

There is also a CPP dispute resolution process that any GMASC member may invoke, which is included in Section 9: Dispute Resolution (Page 9–11) of the Framework Agreement. A notice of dispute can occur after any GMASC CPP recommendation to the County Commissioners.

Skagit County

Countywide Planning Policies

January 2024 Proposed Revisions to include Housing (HB1220) and Climate (HB 1181) 2021

Table of Contents

Role of Co	ountywide Planning Policies and the Comprehensive Plans1
Policy 1.	Urban Growth
Policy 2.	Reduce Sprawl6
Policy 3.	Transportation9
Policy 4.	Housing
Policy 5.	Economic Development
Policy 6.	Property Rights14
Policy 7.	Permits
Policy 8.	Natural Resource Industries
Policy 9.	Open Space and Recreation
Policy 10.	Environment
Policy 11.	Citizen Participation and Coordination21
Policy 12.	Public Facilities and Services
Policy 13.	Historic Preservation
Policy 14 C	Climate Change and Resiliency25

Appendix A. Growth Allocations

Appendix B. Growth Allocations Procedures

GMA Goal 14 added (2023) Section 14: Climate Change and resiliency. Ensure that comprehensive plans, development regulations, and regional policies, plans and strategies under RCW 36.70A.201 and Chapter RCW 47.80 adapt to and mitigate the effects of a changing climate, support reductions in greenhouse gas emissions and per capita vehicle miles traveled; prepare for climate impact scenarios; foster resiliency to climate impacts and natural hazards; protect and enhance environmental, economic, and human health and safety; and advance environmental justice.

The greenhouse gas emissions reduction subelement and resiliency element is mandatory for the jurisdictions specified in RCW 36.70A.95

Skagit County Countywide Planning Policies

The Role of the Skagit County Countywide Planning Policies and the Comprehensive Plans

- i Pursuant to RCW 36.70A.210, these Skagit County Countywide Planning Policies ("Countywide Planning Policies" or "CPPs") establish a countywide framework for developing county, city and town comprehensive plans (collectively "Comprehensive Plans").
- ii Except as otherwise provided for by law, Skagit County, municipalities, and state agencies are subject to the Countywide Planning Policies. The Skagit County Comprehensive Plan, and the comprehensive plans of the cities and towns within Skagit County shall be consistent with these policies.
- iii The 2002 Framework Agreement executed by Skagit County and every city and town within the county – guides the process for adoption and amendment of Countywide Planning Policies.
- The Board of County Commissioners adopt and amend Countywide Planning Policies in cooperation with the cities and towns, consistent with RCW 36.70A.210 and the 2002 Framework Agreement.
- v All Elements of Comprehensive Plans, including maps and procedures, shall comply with these policies. Amendments to the other components of Comprehensive Plans shall conform to these policies.
- vi As required by RCW 36.70A.120, activities and capital budgeting decisions made by Skagit County, and all cities and towns located within the county, shall be made in conformity with the locally adopted comprehensive plan.
- vii The Skagit County Comprehensive Plan adopts by reference the following functional plans: Shoreline, Drainage, Floodplain, Schools, Special Districts, Parks and Recreation, Transportation, Watershed, the Coordinated Water System Plan and any other functional plans adopted by Skagit County. Each referenced plan shall be coordinated with, and consistent with, the Skagit County Comprehensive Plan.
- viii All disputes over the proper interpretation of other functional plans and all implementing regulations, including zoning maps and zoning regulations, shall be resolved in favor of the interpretation which most clearly achieves Countywide Planning Policies.
- ix Local governments shall pursue methods of collecting and displaying statistics, maps and other information necessary for government.

X	Upon adoption of Comprehensive Plans, sub-area plans will be considered to address homogeneous natural features and communities.	
County (<u>HB 11</u>	wide Planning Policies, January 20242021 Proposed Revisions to include Housing (HB 1220) and Climate 81)	2

X

1. Urban Growth

Encourage urban development in urban areas where adequate public facilities and services exist or can be provided in an efficient manner.

- 1.1 Urban growth shall be allowed only within cities and towns, their designated Urban Growth Areas ("UGAs") and within any non-municipal urban growth areas already characterized by urban growth, identified in the Skagit County Comprehensive Plan with a Capital Facilities Plan meeting urban standards. Population and employment land allocations for each UGA shall be consistent with the allocations shown in Appendix A.
- 1.2 Cities and towns and their urban growth areas, and non-municipal urban growth areas designated pursuant to CPP 1.1, shall include areas and densities sufficient to accommodate as a target 80% of the county's 20-year population projection.
- 1.3 Urban growth areas shall provide for urban densities of mixed uses and shall direct development of neighborhoods which provide adequate and accessible urban governmental services concurrent with development. The Growth Management Act ("GMA") defines urban governmental services as those governmental services historically and typically delivered by cities, including storm and sanitary sewer systems, domestic water systems, street cleaning services, fire and police protection services, public transit services, and other public utilities associated with urban areas and normally not associated with nonurban areas.
- 1.4 Urban growth areas shall include greenbelts, greenspace and open space, and encourage the preservation of wildlife habitat areas and urban community forests.
- 1.5 Cities and towns shall encourage development, including greenbelt and open space areas, on existing vacant land and in-fill properties before expanding beyond their present corporate city limits towards urban growth boundaries.
- 1.6 Annexations beyond urban growth areas are prohibited.
- 1.7 The baseline for 20-year countywide population forecasts shall be the official Growth Management Act Population Projections from the State of Washington's Office of Financial Management. The Growth Management Act Technical Advisory Committee ("Planners Committee") shall recommend the process for allocating forecasted population and employment, which shall be cooperatively reviewed by the Growth Management Act Steering Committee ("GMASC"), consistent with the 2002 Framework Agreement. Final growth allocations will be ratified by each government's legislative body. The growth allocation process shall use the procedures in Appendix B, which calls for the following steps:
 - a. Initial Growth Allocations;
 - b. Reconciliation:
 - c. Long Term Monitoring; and

HB 1220 added new housing allocations, now included in RCW 36.70A.070 Comprehensive Plans-Mandatory Element

d. Allocation Adjustment.

- 1.8 Skagit County, the cities and towns shall use consistent development and housing land capacity analysis methods as approved by the GMASC to determine the capacity of Urban Growth Areas to accommodate population and employment growth and housing produced in the different AMI categories provided by the Department of Commerce.

 Jurisdictions will supply a capacity amount of undeveloped buildable urban land needed. inventory done as part of their periodic updates, to the Skagit Council of Governments. The inventory of the undeveloped buildable urban land supply is to be maintained by Skagit County in a Regional Geographic Information Systems database.
- 1.9 Skagit County, the cities and towns will establish a common method to monitor urban development and housing development to evaluate the rate of growth and maintain an inventory of the amount of buildable land remaining and the amount of housing produced in the different AMI categories provided by the Department of Commerce. The Planners Committee shall develop a monitoring process, prepare annual monitoring reports and present the reports to the Growth Management Act Steering Committee annually.
- All growth outside the urban growth boundary shall be rural in nature as defined in the Rural Element, not requiring urban governmental services, except in those limited circumstances shown to be necessary to the satisfaction of both Skagit County and the affected city/town to protect basic public health, safety and the environment, and when such services are financially supportable at rural densities and do not permit urban development
- 1.11 Prior to altering urban growth areas, or as part of a periodic update, a climate impact analysis shall be completed. The climate impact analysis shall evaluate the greenhouse gas (GHG) and vehicle miles traveled (VMT) impacts associated with the proposed change and consider climate vulnerability and resilience scenarios created by the change. The analysis shall also consider the GHG and VMT impacts associated with other feasible alternatives for accommodating projected growth. Preference shall be given to alternatives that reduce per capita VMT and GHG emissions and changes that increase climate resilience and protect vulnerable populations and overburdened communities.

- 1.8 Added housing capacity analysis to the existing land capacity analysis. Removed GMASC requirements for methodology approval. Removed Skagit County GIS requirement to store data. SCOG will collect land and housing capacity reports.
- **1.9** Department of Commerce AMI categories for different types of housing will be used for reconciliation and monitoring reports

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.74", Hanging: 0.5", Right: 0", No bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 1.2"

Formatted: Normal, No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.74", Hanging: 0.5", Right: 0", No bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 1.2"

Formatted: Normal, No bullets or numbering

2. Reduce Sprawl

Reduce the inappropriate conversion of undeveloped land into sprawling, low-density development.

- 2.1 Contiguous and orderly development and provision of urban services to such development within urban growth boundaries shall be required.
- 2.2 Development within the urban growth area shall be coordinated and phased through interagency agreements.
- 2.3 Rural development shall be allowed in areas outside of the urban growth boundaries having limited resource production values (e.g. agriculture, timber, mineral) and having access to public services. Rural development shall have access through suitable county roads, have limited impact on agricultural, timber, mineral lands, critical areas, shorelands, historic landscapes or cultural resources and must address their drainage and ground water impacts.
- 2.4 Rural commercial and industrial development shall be consistent with that permitted by the Growth Management Act, specifically including RCW 36.70A.070(5)(d) and related provisions and the 1997 ESB 6094 amendments thereto. This development shall not be urban in scale or character or require the extension of urban services outside of urban growth areas, except where necessary to address an existing public health, safety or environmental problem.
- 2.5 Rural commercial and industrial development shall be of a scale and nature consistent and compatible with rural character and rural services, or as otherwise allowed under RCW 36.70A.070(5)(d), and may include commercial services to serve the rural population, natural resource-related industries, small scale businesses and cottage industries that provide job opportunities for rural residents, and recreation, tourism and resort development that relies on the natural environment unique to the rural area.
- 2.6 Priority consideration will be given to siting of new rural commercial and industrial uses in areas of existing development, including existing Rural Villages and existing Rural Centers, followed by already developed sites in the rural area, and only lastly to wholly undeveloped sites in the rural area.
- 2.7 Master planned sites designated for industrial and large-scale commercial uses shall be clustered, landscaped, and buffered to alleviate adverse impacts to surrounding areas.
- 2.8 Commercial areas should be aggregated in cluster form, be pedestrian oriented, provide adequate parking and be designed to accommodate public transit.

2.9 Urban commercial and urban industrial development, except development directly dependent on local agriculture, forestry, mining, aquatic and resource operations, and major industrial development which meets the criteria contained in RCW 36.70A.365, should be restricted to urban or urban growth areas where adequate transportation networks and appropriate utility services are available.

The process to consider siting of specific major industrial developments outside of urban growth areas shall follow the process included in the 2002 Framework Agreement for adoption of Countywide Planning Policies. Major industrial developments shall mean a master planned location for specific manufacturing, industrial, or commercial business that:

- 1. Requires a parcel of land so large that no suitable parcels are available within an urban growth area; or
- Is a natural resource-based industry requiring a location near agricultural land, forest land, or mineral resource land upon which it is dependent. The major industrial development shall not be for the purpose of retail commercial development or multi-tenant office park.

A major industrial development may be approved outside an urban growth area if the following criteria are met:

- 1. New infrastructure is provided for and/or applicable impact fees are paid;
- 2. Transit-oriented site planning and traffic demand management programs are implemented;
- Buffers are provided between the major industrial development and adjacent nonurban areas;
- Environmental protection including air and water quality has been addressed and provided for;
- 5. Development regulations are established to ensure that urban growth will not occur in adjacent non-urban areas;
- Provision is made to mitigate adverse impacts on designated agricultural lands, forest lands, and mineral resource lands;
- 8. The plan for the major industrial development is consistent with Skagit County's development regulations established for the protection of critical areas; and

9. An inventory of developable land has been conducted and Skagit County has determined and entered findings that land suitable to site the major industrial development is unavailable within the urban growth area. Priority shall be given to applications for sites that are adjacent to or in close proximity to the urban growth areas.

Final approval of an application for a major industrial development shall be considered an adopted amendment to the Skagit County Comprehensive Plan adopted pursuant to RCW 36.70A.070 designating the major industrial development site on the land use map as an urban growth area. Final approval of the application shall not be considered an amendment to the Skagit County Comprehensive Plan for the purposes of RCW 36.70A.130(2) and may be considered at any time.

2.10 Establishment or expansion of local improvement districts and special purpose taxing districts, except flood control, diking districts and other districts formed for the purpose of protecting water quality, in designated commercial forest resource lands shall be discouraged.

3. **Transportation**

Encourage efficient multimodal transportation systems that will reduce greenhouse gas emissions and per capita vehicle miles traveled and are based on regional priorities and coordinated with county and city comprehensive plans.

- 3.1 Multi-purpose Multimodal transportation routes and facilities shall be designed to accommodate present and future traffic volumes.
- 3.2 Primary arterial access points shall be designed to ensure maximum safety while minimizing traffic flow disruptions.
- 3.3 The development of new transportation routes and improvements to existing routes shall be consistent with VMT and GHG reduction targets and shall minimize adverse social, economic and environmental impacts and costs, especially those impacts to vulnerable populations and overburdened communities.
- 3.4 Transportation elements of Comprehensive Plans shall be designed to; facilitate the flow of people, goods and services so as to strengthen the local and regional economy; conform with the Land Use Element; be based upon an inventory of the existing Skagit County transportation network and needs; and encourage the conservation of energy and reduction of VMT and GHG with the goal of meeting or exceeding Washington State targets.
- Provisions in Comprehensive Plans for the location and improvement of existing and future transportation networks and public transportation shall be made in a manner consistent with the goals, policies and land use map of the locally adopted comprehensive plan.
- 3.6 The development of a recreational transportation network shall be encouraged and coordinated between state and local governments and private enterprises.
- 3.7 Transportation services for seniors and individuals with disabilities shall be provided by public transportation operators to provide for those who, through age and/or disability, are unable to transport themselves.
- 3.8 Multi-modal 1L-evel of service (LOS) standards and safety standards shall be established that coordinate and link with the urban growth and urban areas to coordinate optimize land use and transportation traffic compatibility over the long term. New development shall mitigate multimodal LOS deficiencies transportation impacts concurrently with the development and occupancy of the project. Acceptable mitigation may include active transportation facility improvements, increased or enhanced public transportation service, ride-sharing programs, demand management, or transportation systems management strategies funded by the development.
- 3.9 An all-weather arterial road system shall be coordinated with industrial and commercial

Countywide Planning Policies, January 20242021 Proposed Revisions to include Housing (HB 1220) and Climate

The greenhouse gas emissions reduction sub-element and resiliency sub- element is mandatory for the jurisdictions specified in RCW 36.70A.95

The greenhouse has emissions subelement of the Comprehensive plan must identify actions consistent with guidelines published pursuant to RCW 70A.45.120 that will:

- (a) Result in reductions in overall GHG emissions generated by transportation and land use within the jurisdiction but without increasing GHG elsewhere in the state;
- (b) Result in reductions in per capita VMT within the jurisdiction but without increasing VMT in the state
- (c) Prioritize reductions that benefit overburdened communities in order to maximize the co-benefits of reduced air pollution and environmental justice.

WAC 365-196-840 Concurrency - In urban areas, the department recommends counties and cities adopt methodologies that analyze the transportation system from a comprehensive multi-modal perspective authorized by

RCW 36.70A.108

- 3.10 Cost effectiveness shall be a consideration in transportation expenditure decisions and balanced for both safety and service improvements.
- 3.11 An integrated regional transportation system shall be designed to minimize air pollution, including a reduction of vehicle related greenhouse gas emissions and reduction of vehicle miles travelled by promoting the use of alternative transportation modes, reducing vehicular traffic, maintaining acceptable multimodal levels of service, traffic flow, and siting of facilities.
- All new and expanded transportation facilities and transportation system improvements shall be sited, constructed and maintained to minimize noise levels and shall not have the effect of increasing per capita VMT or greenhouse gas emissions.
- 3.13 Increase the percentage of trips made using transit by prioritizing transit service hours and capital investments for routes serving urban corridors with high levels of ridership potential where dense concentrations of housing, employment, or services exist or are planned.
- 3.14 Develop a regional network of active transportation facilities and connect major regional cities with a multi-use path system.

3.12

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left: 0.74", Hanging: 0.5", Right: 0", Line spacing: single, No bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 0.64"

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left: 0.74", Hanging: 0.5", Right: 0", Line spacing: single, No bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 0.64"

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left: 0.74", Hanging: 0.5", Right: 0", Line spacing: single, No bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 0.64"

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left: 0.64", No bullets or numbering

4. Housing

Plan for and accommodate Encourage the availability of affordable housing to all economic segments of the population of this state, promote a variety of residential densities and housing types, and encourage preservation of existing housing stock.

- Allow for an adequate supply of land use options to provide housing for a wide range of incomes, housing types and densities. Comprehensive Plans must include a housing element that plans for and accommodates housing affordable to all economic segments of the population. The housing element must include an inventory and analysis of existing and projected housing needs that identifies the number of housing units necessary to manage projected growth, including units for low, very low and extremely low-income households, and emergency housing, emergency shelters and permanent supportive housing (PSH),
- 4.2 At a minimum, each jurisdiction shall provide sufficient capacity to accommodate the number and type of units allocated to the jurisdiction through regional allocation process described in Appendix B. Comprehensive plans, development regulations, and funding mechanisms shall also be consistent with the following housing allocation policies:
 - a. Housing allocations including PSH, low, very low and extremely low-income households shall be prioritized in, and shall be primarily allocated to, urban areas with good access to transit and services.
 - b. Rural areas typically lack access to transit and services, but may have localized or unique housing needs, such as housing for rural resource employees or housing for extended family members. In such areas, accessory dwelling units may be considered.
 - c. Consistent with the process described in Appendix B, locations without access to transit or services, including rural areas and towns, may have some of their allocation of low, very low and extremely low-income households, emergency shelters and PSH given by the Department of Commerce methodology or an approved equivalent quantitative method, reallocated to urban areas in cities with more access to services and transit.
 - d. The reconciliation process described in Appendix B may be used to reallocate housing numbers if needed, in coordination with land capacity analysis and population and employment allocation reconciliation processes.
 - e. Avoid further concentrations of low-income, PSH and emergency shelter housing.
 - f. Increase opportunities and capacity for housing that is affordable and close to employment, education, shopping, public services and public transit.

HB 1220 resulted in new required housing allocations as part of RCW 36.70A.070 Comprehensive Plans-Mandatory elements in order to plan for and accommodate housing for different area median incomes (AMI)

Formatted: Not Expanded by / Condensed by

RCW 36.70A.070 Comprehensive Plans Mandatory Elements includes consideration of the role of accessory dwelling units.

4.1g. To provide equal access and to equitably meet the needs of Skagit County's vulnerable populations, PSH and emergency shelter capacity will be allocated to urban areas in a geographically balanced fashion and proportionate to each UGA's population.

- 4.24.3 Public/private partnerships shall be encouraged to build affordable housing and devise incentives for innovative and environmentally sensitive design to meet the housing needs of people with low and moderate incomes and special needs populations.
- 4.34.4 Comprehensive Plans should support innovative land use management techniques, including, but not limited to, density bonuses, cluster housing, planned unit developments and the transfer of development rights.
- 4.44.5 The existing affordable housing stock should be maintained and efforts to rehabilitate older and substandard housing, which are otherwise consistent with comprehensive plan policies, should be encouraged.
- 4.54.6 The construction of housing that promotes innovative, energy efficient and less expensive building technologies shall be encouraged.
- 4.64.7 Provisions in Comprehensive Plans for the location of residential development shall be made in a manner consistent with protecting natural resource lands, aquatic resources, and critical areas.
- 4.8 The County and Cities, and public housing authorities, should participate in multi-jurisdictional affordable housing programs with the goal to increase housing for low-income, PSH and emergency shelters. These programs will be cooperative efforts that include public agencies, non-profits, and other providers of housing. Manufactured home parks shall be allowed only within urban or urban growth areas.
- 4.9 The County and Cities, in cooperation with housing and human services providers should create an actionable countywide strategy to coordinate the development of public supported housing projects which includes a funding strategy addressing capital and operating.
- 4.74.10 Regional funding mechanisms and the capital plans of public housing providers should be consistent with the housing allocations established through each jurisdiction's Comprehensive Plan.

Formatted

- **4.7** Removal of requirements for mobile home parks only within urban or urban growth areas. Allows for more flexibility in LAMIRDS if services are available.
- **4.8**, **4.9** and **4.10** ensure that housing elements of jurisdictions are consistent with North Star initiative

Formatted: Not Expanded by / Condensed by

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.74", Hanging: 0.5", No bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 1.24"

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.74", Hanging: 0.5", No bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 1.24"

5. Economic Development

Encourage economic development throughout the state that is consistent with adopted comprehensive plans, promote economic opportunity for all citizens of this state, especially for unemployed and for disadvantaged persons, promote the retention and expansion of existing businesses and recruitment of new businesses, recognize regional differences impacting economic development opportunities, and encourage growth in areas experiencing insufficient economic growth, all within the capacities of the state's natural resources, public services, and public facilities.

- 5.1 The development of environmentally sensitive industries shall be encouraged.
- 5.2 Home occupations that do not significantly change or impact neighborhood character shall be permitted.
- 5.3 Economic diversity should be encouraged in rural communities where special incentives and services can be provided.
- 5.4 Commercial and industrial activities directly related to local natural resource production may be allowed in designated natural resource areas provided they can demonstrate their location and existence as natural resource area dependent businesses.
- 5.5 A diversified economic base shall be encouraged to minimize the vulnerability of the local economy to economic fluctuations.
- 5.6 Commercial, industrial and residential acreage shall be designated to meet future needs without adversely affecting natural resource lands, critical areas, and rural character and life styles.
- 5.7 Tourism, recreation and land preservation shall be promoted provided they do not conflict with the long-term commercial significance of natural resources and critical areas or rural life styles.
- 5.8 Agriculture, forestry, aquatic resources and mineral extraction shall be encouraged both within and outside of designated resource lands.
- 5.9 The primary land use within designated forest resource lands shall be commercial forestry. Residential development shall be strongly discouraged within designated forest resource lands.
- 5.10 Lands within designated agricultural resource areas should remain in large parcels and ownership patterns conducive to commercial agricultural operations and production.

- 5.11 Skagit County shall conserve agriculture, aquaculture, forest and mineral resources for productive use by designating natural resource lands and aquatic resource areas, where the principal and preferred land uses will be long term commercial resource management.
- 5.12 Value added natural resource industries shall be encouraged.
- 5.13 Skagit County shall increase the availability of renewable resources and encourage the maximum attainable recycling of non-renewable resources.
- 5.14 Commercial and industrial activities directly related to or dependent on local aquatic resource areas should be encouraged in shoreline areas provided they are shoreline dependent and/or related.
- 5.15 Comprehensive Plans shall support and encourage economic development and employment to provide opportunities for prosperity.

6. Property Rights

Private property shall not be taken for public use without just compensation having been made. The property rights of landowners shall be protected from arbitrary and discriminatory actions.

- 6.1 Proposed regulatory or administrative actions shall not result in an unconstitutional taking of private property.
- 6.2 The rights of property owners operating under current land use regulations shall be preserved unless a clear public health, safety or welfare purpose is served by more restrictive regulation.
- 6.3 Surface water runoff and drainage facilities shall be designed and utilized in a manner which protects against the destruction of private property and the degradation of water quality.

7. Permits

Applications for both state and local government permits should be processed in a timely and fair manner to ensure predictability.

- 7.1 Inter-agency agreements with other agencies to facilitate multi-agency permits shall be pursued to better serve the public.
- 7.2 Upon receipt of a complete application, land use proposals and permits shall be expeditiously reviewed and decisions made in a timely manner.
- 7.3 Variances that would create a policy violation of a jurisdiction's comprehensive plan shall not be permitted.
- 7.4 New implementing codes and amendments shall provide clear regulations to reduce the possibility of multiple interpretations by staff and applicants.
- 7.5 Impact fees shall be imposed through established ordinances, procedures and criteria so that specific developments do not pay arbitrary fees or duplicative fees for the same impact.
- 7.6 Special purpose districts permitted by statute to request impact fees shall to the extent possible utilize similar formulas to calculate costs of new development.

8. Natural Resource Industries

Maintain and enhance natural resource-based industries, including productive timber, agricultural, and fisheries industries. Encourage the conservation of productive forest lands and productive agricultural lands, and discourage incompatible uses.

- 8.1 Identified critical areas, shorelands, aquatic resource areas and natural resource lands shall be protected by restricting conversion. Encroachment by incompatible uses shall be prevented by maintenance of adequate buffering between conflicting activities.
- 8.2 Land uses adjacent to agricultural, forest, or mineral resource lands and designated aquatic resource areas shall not interfere with the continued use of these designated lands for the production of food, agricultural and aquatic based products, or timber, or for the extraction of minerals.
- 8.3 Forest and agricultural lands located within urban growth areas shall not be designated as forest or agricultural land of long-term commercial significance unless a program authorizing transfer or purchase of development rights is established.
- 8.4 Mining sites or portions of mining sites shall be reclaimed when they are abandoned, depleted, or when operations are discontinued for long periods.
- 8.5 Long-term commercially significant natural resource lands and designated aquatic resource areas shall be protected and conserved. Skagit County shall adopt policies and regulations that encourage and facilitate the retention and enhancement of natural resource areas in perpetuity.
- 8.6 When plats, short plats, building permits and development permits are issued for development activities on or adjacent to natural resource lands and aquatic resource areas, notice shall be provided to those seeking permit approvals that certain activities may occur that are not compatible with residences.
- 8.7 Fishery resources, including the county's river systems inclusive of their tributaries, as well as the area's lakes, associated wetlands, and marine waters, shall be protected and enhanced for continued productivity.
- 8.8 Skagit County shall encourage sustainable use of the natural resources of the County, including but not limited to agriculture, forestry, and aquatic resources.
- 8.9 Skagit County shall conserve agricultural, aquatic based, forest and mineral resources for productive use by designating natural resource lands and aquatic resource areas where the principal and preferred land uses will be long-term commercial resource management.

9. Open Space and Recreation

Retain open space <u>and green space</u>, enhance recreational opportunities, <u>conserve</u> <u>enhance</u> fish and wildlife habitat, increase access to natural resource lands and water, and develop parks and recreation facilities.

- 9.1 Open space corridors within and between urban growth areas shall be identified. These areas shall include lands useful for recreation, fish and wildlife habitat, trails, and connection of critical areas.
- 9.2 To preserve open space and create recreational opportunities, innovative regulatory techniques and incentives such as but not limited to, purchase of development rights, transfer of development rights, conservation easements, land trusts and community acquisition of lands for public ownership shall be encouraged.
- 9.3 The use of Open Space Taxation Laws shall be encouraged as a useful method of land use control and resource preservation.
- 9.4 Expansion and enhancement of parks, recreation and scenic areas and viewing points shall be identified, planned for and improved in shorelands, and urban and rural designated areas.
- 9.5 Property owners shall be encouraged to site and design new construction to minimize disruption of visual amenities and solar resources of adjacent property owners, public road ways, parks, lakes, waterways and beaches.
- 9.6 Development of new park and recreational facilities shall adhere to the policies set out in Comprehensive Plans.
- 9.7 The Skagit Wild and Scenic River System (which includes portions of the Sauk, Suiattle, Cascade and Skagit Rivers) is a resource that should be protected, enhanced and utilized for recreation purposes when there are not potential conflicts with the values (fisheries, wildlife, and scenic quality) of the river system.
- 9.8 Incompatible adjacent uses including industrial and commercial areas shall be adequately buffered by means of landscaping, or by maintaining recreation and open space corridors.
- 9.9 A park and recreation system shall be promoted which is integrated with existing and planned land use patterns.
- 9.10 Indoor and outdoor recreation facilities shall be designed to provide a wide range of opportunities allowing for individual needs of those using these facilities.

Revised to be consistent with **RCW 36.70A.070** Planning Goals

- 9.11 School districts, public agencies and private entities should work together to develop joint inter-agency agreements to provide facilities that not only meet the demands of the education for our youth, but also provide for public recreation opportunities that reduce the unnecessary duplication of facilities within Skagit County.
- 9.12 In planning new park and recreation facilities, consideration shall be given to natural features, topography, floodplains, relationship to population characteristics, types of facilities, various user group needs and standards of access, including travel time.

10. Environment

Protect <u>and enhance</u> the environment and enhance the state's high quality of life, including air and water quality, and the availability of water.

- 10.1 Natural resource lands, including aquatic resource areas and critical areas shall be classified and designated, and regulations adopted to assure their long-term conservation. Land uses and developments which are incompatible with critical areas shall be prohibited except when impacts from such uses and developments can be mitigated.
- 10.2 Land use decisions shall take into account the immediate and long-range cumulative effects of proposed uses on the environment, both on- and off-site.
- 10.3 Reduce the loss of critical aquatic and terrestrial habitat by minimizing habitat fragmentation.
- 10.4 Wetlands, woodlands, watersheds and aquifers are essential components of the hydrologic system and shall be managed to protect surface and groundwater quality.
- 10.5 Recognize the river systems within Skagit County as pivotal freshwater resources and manage development within the greater watershed in a manner consistent with planning practices that enhance the integrity of the aquatic resource, fish and wildlife habitat, and recreational and aesthetic qualities.
- 10.6 Rural character shall be preserved by regulatory mechanisms through which development can occur with minimal environmental impact.
- 10.7 Development shall be directed away from designated natural resource lands, aquatic resource areas and critical areas.
- 10.8 The conversion of tidelands to uplands by means of diking, drainage and filling shall be prohibited, except when carried out by a public body to implement Comprehensive Plans for flood plain management or to respond to a natural disaster threatening life and property.
- 10.9 Septic systems, disposal of dredge spoils and land excavation, filling and clearing activities shall not have an adverse significant effect on Skagit County waters with respect to public health, fisheries, aquifers, water quality, wetlands, wildlife habitat, natural marine ecology and aquatic based resources.
- 10.10 Usual and accustomed activities on natural resource lands and aquatic resource areas shall be protected from interference when they are conducted in accordance with best management practices and environmental laws.

Revised to be consistent with RCW 36.70A.070 Planning Goals

- 10.11 When evaluating and conditioning commercial, industrial or residential development, local governments shall consider threatened or endangered wildlife.
- 10.12 Enter into inter-agency agreements with appropriate state and local agencies and Native American Tribes for compliance with watershed protection, including but not limited to, the cumulative effects of construction, logging and non-point pollution in watersheds.
- 10.13 Cooperate with appropriate local, state and Federal agencies, to develop and implement flood hazard reduction programs, consistent with and supportive of the Corps Feasibility Study_ and consistent with the Climate Chapters of Comprehensive Plans and Hazard Mitigation Plans.
- 10.14 The Skagit River Floodway and the Skagit River Floodplain shall be regulated to protect human life, property and the public health and safety of the citizens of Skagit County; minimize the expenditure of public money; and maintain flood insurance eligibility while avoiding regulations which are unnecessary restrictive or difficult to administer.
- 10.15 Work together to provide ongoing public education about flooding in a coordinated and consistent program, and adopt a flood hazard reduction plan, that works together with the natural and beneficial functions of floodplains.

RCW 36.70A.070- internal consistency required among components within comprehensive plan

RCW 36.70A.100 -consistency required between neighboring jurisdictions

RCW 36.70A.070(6) -consistency between State and local

11. Citizen Participation and Coordination

Encourage the involvement of citizens in the planning process, including the participation of vulnerable populations and overburdened communities, and ensure coordination between communities and jurisdictions to reconcile conflicts.

- 11.1 Maintain procedures to provide for the broad dissemination of proposals and alternatives for public inspection; opportunities for written comments; public hearings after effective notice; open discussions; communication programs and information services; consideration of and response to public comments; and the notification of the public for the adoption, implementation and evaluation of locally adopted comprehensive plans.
- 11.2 Continue to encourage public awareness of Comprehensive Plans by providing for public participation opportunities and public education programs that include ways to solicit participation from vulnerable populations and overburdened communities designed to promote a widespread understanding of the Plans' purpose and intent.
- 11.3 For land use proposals, including those within the marine environment, all applicants shall bear the costs for public notification, by mail, and by posting of signs. Affected neighbors and surrounding shoreline owners shall be notified as prescribed by ordinance.
- 11.4 Provide regular and ongoing opportunities for public review and comment throughout the development process of Comprehensive Plans.
- 11.5 Encourage citizen participation throughout the planning process as mandated by Washington state statute and codes for environmental, land use, and development permits.
- 11.6 Utilize broad based Citizen Advisory Committees to participate and assist in the Element development of the Comprehensive Plans, sub-area plans and functional plans.

HB 1181 Requires a climate chapter for jurisdictions specified in RCW 36.70A.095 and is encouraged for all other jurisdictions. A climate change and resiliency sub-element is required for jurisdictions in Skagit County with populations greater than 6,000. This includes new public outreach requirements to include participation from vulnerable populations and overburdened communities.

12. Public Facilities and Services

Ensure that those public facilities and services necessary to support development shall be adequate to serve the development at the time the development is available for occupancy and use without decreasing current service levels below locally established minimum standards.

- 12.1 Public facilities and services shall be integrated and consistent with locally adopted comprehensive plans and implementing regulations.
- 12.2 All communities within a region shall fairly share the burden of regional public facilities. (The GMA defines regional public facilities as streets, roads, highways, sidewalks, street and road lighting systems, traffic signals, domestic water systems, storm and sanitary sewer systems, parks, recreational facilities and schools.)
- 12.3 A process shall be developed for identifying and siting essential public facilities. Comprehensive Plans may not preclude the siting of essential public facilities. (The GMA defines essential public facilities as those facilities that are typically difficult to site, such as airports, state education facilities and state or regional transportation facilities, state and local corrections facilities, solid waste handling facilities, and in-patient facilities including substance abuse facilities, mental health facilities, group homes, and secure community transition facilities.)
- 12.4 Lands shall be identified for public purposes, such as: utility corridors, transportation corridors, landfill, sewage treatment facilities, recreation, schools, and other public uses. Skagit County shall work with the state, cities, towns, communities and utility providers to identify areas of shared need for public facilities.
- 12.5 Lands designated for urban growth by Comprehensive Plans shall have an urban level of regional public facilities prior to or concurrent with development.
- 12.6 Development shall be allowed only when and where all public facilities are adequate, and only when and where such development can be adequately served by regional public services without reducing levels of service elsewhere.
- 12.7 Public facilities and services needed to support development shall be available concurrent with the impacts of development.
- 12.8 The financing for system improvements to public facilities to serve new development must provide for a balance between impact fees and other sources of public funds and cannot rely solely on impact fees.

- 12.9 New development shall pay for or provide for its share of new infrastructure through impact fees or as conditions of development through the environmental review process.
- 12.10 Public water supply for new development shall conform to or exceed the Coordinated Water System Plan for public water systems.
- 12.11 Future development of land adjacent to existing and proposed schools and other public facilities shall be compatible with such uses.
- 12.12 Library services within Skagit County should be developed and coordinated to assure the delivery of comprehensive services throughout the county, with Skagit County, cities and towns fairly sharing the burden.
- 12.13 A county-wide recycling program shall be maintained.
- 12.14 Public drainage facilities shall be designed to control both stormwater quantity and quality impacts.
- 12.15 Provide results of the required six-year capital facilities plan, including a financing plan, and ensure consistency with land use designations.
- 12.16 Citizens shall have the opportunity to participate in and comment on proposed capital facilities financing.
- 12.17 The Washington State Boundary Review Board for Skagit County should be disbanded pursuant to RCW 36.93.230 provided that the following tasks are accomplished: (a) that ALL cities and the County have adopted comprehensive plans and development regulations consistent with the requirements of these Countywide Planning Policies and RCW 36.70A, including appropriate urban levels of service for all public facilities and services; (b) that ALL cities and the County have adopted a concurrency ordinance that requires the adopted urban levels of service addressed in (a) above be accomplished in time frames that are consistent with RCW 36.70A.; (c) that special purpose districts that serve UGAs have adopted urban levels of service standards appropriate for their service areas; (d) that ALL cities and the County have an adopted capital facility plan for urban levels of service that indicates sources of revenue and a timeline for meeting such service; and (e) that ALL cities and special purpose districts have in place adopted "interlocal agreements" that discuss arrangements for transfer of assets and obligations that may be affected by transformance of governance or annexation of the service area consistent with the requirements of applicable RCWs.

13. Historic Preservation

Identify and encourage the preservation of lands, sites, and structures, that have historical or archaeological significance.

13.1 Cooperate with local historic preservation groups to ensure coordination of plans and policies by the Washington state Department of Archeology and Historic Preservation.

14. Climate Change and Resiliency

Ensure that Comprehensive Plans, development regulations, and regional policies, plans, and strategies under RCW 36.70A.210 and 47.80 RCW adapt to and mitigate the effects of a changing climate; support reductions in greenhouse gas emissions and per capita vehicle miles travelled; prepare for climate impacts and natural hazards; protect and enhance environmental, economic, human health and safety; and advance environmental justice.

14.1 VMT reduction targets will meet or exceed Washington State VMT reduction targets and be consistent with Washington State law.

- a. Direct the majority of urban population growth to mixed use transit accessible corridors.
- b. Prioritize transit service in urban corridors with high ridership potential or where dense concentrations of housing, employment, and services exist or are planned, and as a means of providing frequent, reliable, and direct connections between regional centers.
- c. Local and regional plans shall include multimodal level of service standards and measures to ensure growth related transportation system impacts are mitigated through active transportation improvements, increased or enhanced public transportation service, ride sharing programs, demand management, or other appropriate measures that can be shown to reduce VMT.
- 14.2 GHG reduction targets will be consistent with Washington State reduction targets as part of the State adopted Transportation Carbon Reduction Strategy per RCW 70A2.45.020.
- 14.3 Comprehensive Plans, capital plans, and the regional transportation plan, will consider the effects of climate change. Effects could include riverine flooding, coastal flooding due to sea level rise, wildfire risk, extreme heat, and impacts to water resources such as reduced instream flows, seawater intrusion, and decreased groundwater availability. Preference will be given to policies, actions and strategies that avoid, minimize or mitigate the impacts of climate change on human health or the natural environment, and that reduce VMT and GHG.
- 14.4 Comprehensive Plans, capital plans and the regional transportation plan shall include measures that address the impacts of climate change on vulnerable populations and overburdened communities.

HB 1181 requires a climate chapter for jurisdictions specified in RCW 36.70A.095 and is encouraged for all other jurisdictions. The climate change chapter requires a greenhouse gas reduction sub-element and resiliency sub-element. This is required for jurisdictions in Skagit County with populations greater than 6,000

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.99", No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.74", Hanging: 0.5", Line spacing: single, No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.74", Hanging: 0.5", Line spacing: single, No bullets or numbering

GHG and VMT reduction targets align with State carbon reduction strategy per RCW 70A2.45.020

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Appendix A. Growth Allocations

	2015 - 2036		2015 - 2036			
Urban Growth Areas	Forecast -	Total 2036	Forecast	Total 2036		
CIDAII GIOWEII AICAS	Population	Population	Employment	Employment		
	Growth		Growth			
Anacortes	5,895	22,293	2,076	10,480		
Burlington	3,808	14,272	3,516	13,412		
Mount Vernon	12,434	47,403	4,785	21,288		
Sedro-Woolley	4,555	17,069	4,427	9,179		
Concrete	320	1,193	109	467		
Hamilton	114	427	66	288		
La Conner	329	1,226	329	1,420		
Lyman	162	605	9	38		
Bayview Ridge	72	1,883	1,799	3,455		
Swinomish	912	3,416	290	1,247		
UGAs Subtotal	28,601	109,787	17,406	61,274		
Rural (outside UGAs)	7,150	45,665	1,447	9,343		
County Total	35,751	155,452	18,853	70,617		

1	Formatted: Indent: First line: 0"
	Formatted: Left, Indent: First line: 0"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0"

Table 1 Approved (December 2023) Projected Population Growth						
<u>Urban Growth</u>		2022	2045 Initial	2022-2045 Projected Population Growth		
<u>Areas</u>		Population	Population	Amount	Percent of	Percent
		Estimates.	Allocations		<u>Total</u>	Growth by
					<u>Growth</u>	<u>Area</u>
<u>Anacortes</u>		<u>17,983</u>	<u>22,971</u>	<u>4,988</u>	<u>16.9%</u>	<u>27.7%</u>
Burlington		12,111	16,930	4,819	<u>16.3%</u>	<u>39.8%</u>
Mount		37,679	46,460	8,781	<u>29.7%</u>	23.3%
<u>Vernon</u>						
Sedro-		<u>14,096</u>	<u>18,582</u>	<u>4,486</u>	<u>15.2%</u>	31.8%
Woolley						
Concrete		<u>949</u>	<u>1,130</u>	<u>181</u>	<u>0.6%</u>	<u>19.1%</u>
<u>Hamilton</u>		<u>302</u>	<u>302</u>	<u>0</u>	0.0%	0.0%
<u>La Conner</u>		<u>980</u>	<u>1,191</u>	<u>211</u>	<u>0.7%</u>	21.5%
Lyman		<u>425</u>	<u>425</u>	<u>0</u>	0.0%	0.0%
<u>Bayview</u>		1,694	1,694	<u>0</u>	0.0%	0.0%
Ridge						
Swinomish		<u>2,565</u>	<u>2,764</u>	<u>199</u>	<u>0.7%</u>	<u>7.8%</u>
UGA Suk	<u>ototal</u>	88,784	112,449	23,665	80.0%	<u>N/A</u>

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted Table

Countywide Planning Policies, January 20242021Proposed Revisions to include Housing (HB 1220) and Climate (HB 1181)

Rural (outside UGAs)	42,465	48,381	<u>5,916</u>	20.0%	13.9%
Grand Total	131,249	160,830	29,581	100.0%	N/A

Table 2. Approved (December 2023) Allocations of Net New Housing										
		Initial Allocations of Net New Housing Needed (2020-2045)					-	Formatted Table		
<u>Urban</u>		0-30%	31-50% AMI	<u>51-80%</u>	81-100%	<u>101-</u>	Above	<u>Total</u>		
Growth		AMI*		<u>AMI</u>	<u>AMI</u>	120%	120%			
<u>Areas</u>						<u>AMI</u>	<u>AMI</u>			
<u>Anacortes</u>		924	<u>592</u>	<u>422</u>	<u>226</u>	<u>201</u>	<u>577</u>	2,942		
<u>Burlington</u>		<u>893</u>	<u>572</u>	<u>408</u>	<u>218</u>	<u>194</u>	<u>558</u>	2,843		
Mount		1,627	1,043	<u>743</u>	398	<u>353</u>	<u>1,016</u>	5,180		
Vernon										
Sedro-		<u>831</u>	<u>533</u>	<u>380</u>	<u>203</u>	<u>180</u>	519	<u>2,646</u>		
Woolley										
Concrete		<u>34</u>	<u>22</u>	<u>15</u>	<u>8</u>	<u>7</u>	<u>21</u>	<u>107</u>	-	Formatted Table
<u>Hamilton</u>		<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>		
La Conner		<u>39</u>	<u>25</u>	<u>18</u>	<u>10</u>	<u>8</u>	<u>24</u>	<u>124</u>		
<u>Lyman</u>		<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>		
Bayview		<u>0</u>	<u>0</u>	0	<u>0</u>	0	0	<u>0</u>		
Ridge										
Swinomish		<u>37</u>	<u>24</u>	<u>17</u>	9	<u>8</u>	<u>23</u>	<u>118</u>		
	<u>UGA</u>	4,385	2,811	2,003	1,072	<u>951</u>	2,738	13,960		Formatted: Font: Bold
	Subtotal									
Rural		<u>89</u>	<u>57</u>	<u>501</u>	<u>268</u>	<u>238</u>	2,337	3,490		
(outside of										
UGA's)										

1,189

5,075

17,450

Notes:

1.) Figures may vary from Skagit County Population, Housing and Employment Growth Allocations Methodology findings due to rounding.

2,868

2.) UGA is "Urban Growth Area"

Grand

Total

4,474

- 3.) AMI is "Area Median Income"
- 4.) Emergency housing needs are documented in the Skagit County Population, Housing and Employment Growth Allocations Methodology.

2,504

1,340

*0-30% AMI includes permanent supportive housing and non-permanent supportive housing.

Table 3: Approved (December 2023) 2022-2023 Projected Employment Growth						
Urban		2022	2045 Initial	2022-2045 Pr	ojected Employn	nent Growth
Growth		Employment	Employment	Amount	Percent of	Percent
Areas		<u>Estimates</u>	Allocations		Total Growth	Growth by
						<u>Area</u>
<u>Anacortes</u>		<u>9,503</u>	<u>12,648</u>	<u>3,145</u>	<u>15.3%</u>	33.1%
<u>Burlington</u>		11,640	<u>17,410</u>	<u>5,770</u>	<u>28.1%</u>	<u>49.6%</u>
Mount		<u>18,781</u>	23,559	<u>4,778</u>	23.3%	<u>25.4%</u>
<u>Vernon</u>						
Sedro-		<u>4,640</u>	<u>7,040</u>	<u>2,400</u>	<u>11.7%</u>	<u>51.7%</u>
Woolley						
Concrete		<u>391</u>	<u>506</u>	<u>115</u>	0.6%	<u>29.4%</u>
<u>Hamilton</u>		<u>466</u>	<u>489</u>	<u>23</u>	<u>0.1%</u>	<u>4.9%</u>
<u>La Conner</u>		<u>1,020</u>	<u>1,905</u>	<u>885</u>	<u>4.3%</u>	<u>86.8%</u>
<u>Lyman</u>		<u>56</u>	<u>76</u>	<u>20</u>	0.1%	35.7%
Bayview		<u>2,962</u>	<u>4,901</u>	<u>1,939</u>	9.4%	<u>65.5%</u>
<u>Ridge</u>						
Swinomish		<u>1,140</u>	<u>1,579</u>	<u>439</u>	<u>2.1%</u>	<u>38.5%</u>
	<u>UGA</u>	50,599	70,113	19,514	<u>95.1%</u>	N/A
	Subtotal					
Rural		<u>8,972</u>	<u>9,987</u>	<u>1,015</u>	<u>4.9%</u>	11.3%
(outside of						
<u>UGA's</u>)						
	Grand Total	59,571	80,100	20,529	100.0%	N/A

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Notes:

1.) Percentages may not sum due to rounding.

2.) Figures may vary from Skagit County Population, Housing and Employment Growth Allocations Methodology findings due to rounding.

3.) UGA is "Urban Growth Area"

4.) The 2015 Planned Action Environmental Impact Statement for the SWIFT Center (formerly known as the "North Cascades Gateway Center") in Sedro-Woolley anticipates 2,855 additional jobs from 2016-2036. These additional jobs are not explicitly included with the 2045 initial employment allocation, though the land capacity conducts, and regional reconciliation process expected to begin late 2024 can account for additional planned employment.

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.75" + Indent at: 1"

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Appendix B. Growth Allocations Procedures

The process of setting and reviewing growth allocations shall be consistent with the 2002 Framework Agreement among Skagit County, the cities and towns as currently adopted or amended.

- 1. **Initial Growth Allocations:** The Planners Committee will develop initial population and employment, and housing allocations for review and adoption by the GMASC.
 - a. The initial <u>population</u> allocations will be based on the most recently published official 20-year population projections for Skagit County from the Office of Financial Management.
 - a.b. The initial housing allocations for review and adoption by the GMASC will be based on the Department of Commerce methodology or an approved equivalent quantitative methodology and be consistent with Countywide Planning Policy 4.

Jurisdictions shall use these initial allocations for at least one of the plan alternatives they evaluate for their GMA plan updates and housing plan updates.

- Reconciliation for Population and Employment Allocations: Once the GMA
 comprehensive plan updates of jurisdictions have identified a preferred growth plan with
 sufficient detail to determine if the population and employment allocation can be
 accommodated, the GMASC will review and, if necessary, recommend adjusting the
 population and employment growth allocations to be included in the CPPs.
 - a. Skagit County, the and cities and towns shall jointly review the preferred growth alternatives proposed in local comprehensive plans for discrepancies with the allocation associated with Skagit County's preferred plan alternative.
 - b. Based on the land supply, permitted densities, capital facilities, urban service capacities and other information associated with the preferred growth alternatives of proposed local comprehensive plans, the Planners Committee shall recommend to the GMASC a reconciled 20-year population and employment allocation.
 - c. The GMASC shall review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners a reconciled 20-year population and employment allocation. Substantial consideration shall be given to the plan of each jurisdiction, and the recommendation shall be consistent with the GMA and the CPPs.
 - d. The Board of County Commissioners shall consider the recommendation of the GMASC and shall replace the allocations in the CPPs with a reconciled 20-year population and employment allocation.
- 3. Reconciliation for Housing Allocations: Once the GMA comprehensive plan updates of jurisdictions have identified a preferred growth plan including housing allocations based on Department of Commerce guidelines and methodology, or a Commerce approved alternative quantitative method: the GMASC will review and, if necessary, recommend adjusting the housing allocations to be included in the CCP's.
 - a. Skagit County and the cities and towns shall jointly review the preferred housing

the reconciliation process.

HB 1220 housing allocations added to

Commerce methodology for housing

AMI categories and housing types for

growth allocation procedures.

Includes using Department of

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.07", No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.57", No bullets or numbering

allocations proposed in local comprehensive plans for discrepancies with the allocations associated with Skagit County's preferred plan alternative and Department of Commerce requirements.

- b. This will be based on land capacity, permitted densities, transit availability, urban services provided, locations with good proximity to employment centers, alignment with the countywide strategy for development of public supported housing projects and assurance that low income and emergency shelter housing options are dispersed countywide. And any other information provided with the preferred housing alternatives of local comprehensive plans. The Planners Committee shall recommend to the GMASC a reconciled 20-year housing allocation.
- C. The GMASC shall review and recommend to the Board of County

 Commissioners a reconciled 20-year housing allocation. Substantial

 consideration shall be given to the plan of each jurisdiction, and the

 recommendation shall be consistent with the adopted population and

 employment allocations, the GMA, Department of Commerce requirements and
 the CCP's.
- d. The Board of County Commissioners shall consider the recommendation of the GMASC and shall replace the allocations in the CCP with a reconciled 20-year housing allocation parallel to the reconciliation process done for population and employment allocations.
- de. The reconciliation process for population, employment and housing are all done together as part of the overall reconciliation and will follow the process and procedures in the 2002 framework agreement.
- 3.4. Long Term Monitoring: Subsequent to reconciliation, the GMASC shall maintain a long-term monitoring process to review annually the population, and employment and housing growth allocations contained in the CPPs.
 - a. Skagit County, the cities and towns shall jointly monitor the following:
 - i. Estimated population and employment growth;
 - ii. Annexations and incorporations; and
 - iii. Residential and non-residential development trends.
 - <u>iii.iv.</u> Estimated housing constructed per area median income (AMI) categories <u>determined by the Department of Commerce requirements for housing allocations.</u>
 - b. Results of the monitoring program shall be published in a growth monitoring report developed by the Planners Committee and recommended to the GMASC.
 - c. The GMASC shall review and approve the annual report by resolution.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.07", No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left: 0.74", Hanging: 0.5", Right: 0", Space Before: 0 pt, Line spacing: single, No bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 1.07"

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left: 0.74", Hanging: 0.5", Right: 0", Space Before: 0 pt, Line spacing: single, No bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 1.07"

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left: 0.74", Hanging: 0.5", Right: 0", Space Before: 0 pt, Line spacing: single, No bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 1.07"

Formatted: Not Expanded by / Condensed by

- 4-5. Allocation Adjustment: The GMASC may consider adjustments to the population and employment growth allocations contained in Appendix A of CPPs in the years between Washington state-required updates. The following steps shall be used:
 - a. Based on the results of the long-term monitoring process, the Planners Committee
 may review and recommend to the GMASC an adjustment to the population and
 employment allocations.
 - b. The GMASC shall review the Planners Committee recommendation to adjust growth allocations and may recommend to the Board of County Commissioners an adjustment to the population and employment allocations. Adjustments to the growth allocations shall be based on the results of the monitoring program and shall be consistent with the GMA and the CPPs.
 - c. The Board of County Commissioners shall consider the recommendation of the GMASC and may amend the CPPs with adjusted population and employment allocations for cities and towns, UGAs, and rural areas.

Any disputes regarding the roles and responsibilities of the Board of County Commissioners, the GMASC, and individual jurisdictions in reviewing and approving amendments to the Countywide Planning Policies shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures established by the 2002 Framework Agreement.

201805240059

05/24/2018 01:16 PM Pages

Pages: 1 of 20 Fees: \$93.00

201712130068

Skagit County Auditor

\$92.00

12/13/2017 Page

of 19 1:01PM

201404240098

Skagit County Auditor

\$49.00 of 18 2:53PM

17 8:40AM

4/24/2014 Page 1 of A

200211270010 Skagli County Augitor

SKAGIT COUNTY
Contract # C20020423

Page 1 of 17

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: SKAGIT COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 700 SO. SECOND STREET, ROOM 202 MOUNT VERNON, WA 98273

Re-Record to Add Signature page

DOCUMENT TITLE:

2002 Framework Agreement Among Skagit County, rhe City

of Burlington, the City of Mount Vernon, the City of Anacortes, The City of Sedro Woolley, and the Town of

LaConner

DATE SIGNED:

November 26, 2002

GRANTOR:

SKAGIT COUNTY

GRANTEE:

Cities of Burlington, Mount Vernon, Anacortes, Sedro

Wooley and the Town of LaConner

COUNTY CONTRACT NO .:

'2002 FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT'

ORIGINAL

AMONG SKAGIT COUNTY, THE CITY OF BURLINGTON, THE CITY OF MOUNT VERNON, THE CITY OF ANACORTES, THE CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY, AND THE **TOWN OF LACONNER**

REGARDING COORDINATED PLANNING, URBAN SERVICES, AND COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 36.70A RCW, Skagit County (the "County") and each city and town situated therein (the "City" or "Cities") must adopt a comprehensive plan and development regulations to implement their respective comprehensive plans; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 36,70A.210, the County legislative authority must adopt county-wide planning policies ("CPPs") in cooperation with the Cities; and

WHEREAS, CPPs are defined by the Growth Management Act as the written policy statements that establish a framework for developing and adopting county and city comprehensive plans, and thereby provide a locally adopted format for meeting the state planning goals; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with RCW 36.70A.210, the comprehensive plans adopted by the Cities and by Skagit County must be consistent with the CPPs; and

> SKAGIT COUNTY Contract # C20020423

Page 2 of 17

Skaglt County Auditor 4/24/2014 Page

\$49,00 18 2:53PM

WHEREAS, a Framework Agreement is necessary to set out the agreed upon procedures by which the CPPs will be developed and adopted; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 36,70A,210, just such a Framework Agreement was adopted by the cities of Anacortes, Burlington, Mount Vernon, and Sedro-Woolley, the town of La Conner, and Skagit County on January 13, 1992; and

WHEREAS, these jurisdictions used the Framework Agreement to reach agreement in 1992 on a set of CPPs, and subsequently amended those CPPs in 1996; and

WHEREAS, these jurisdictions have all adopted comprehensive plans and development regulations pursuant to GMA requirements and those CPPs; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 36.70A.130 (as amended by SSB 5481), the comprehensive plans and development regulations of the County and of the Cities must be reviewed to ensure compliance with the Growth Management Act no later than December 1, 2005, and every five years thereafter (exclusive of policies and development regulations to site secure community transition facilities, which policies and development regulations must be completed by September 1, 2002 in accordance with RCW 36.70A.200 and ESSB 6594); and

WHEREAS, the parties find it in the best interest of the citizens served by each government to make the most effective and efficient use of planning resources; and

WHEREAS, the parties find that the most efficient and effective use of resources to provide planning services and grants administration may be better achieved by a new organizational structure than that established by the 1992 Framework Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the parties, after thorough examination of the structure of the existing County-Wide Planning Policies Committee, conclude it to be in the best interest of the citizens to rescind the existing 1992 interlocal agreement, and dissolve the County-Wide Planning Policies Committee created by the 1992 Agreement, and adopt the provisions set forth below in this 2002 Framework Agreement.

SKAGIT COUNTY
Contract # C20020423

Page 3 of 17

3 of

Skagit County Auditor 4/24/2014 Page

\$49.00 18 2:53PM NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ANACORTES; THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURLINGTON; THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNT VERNON; THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY; THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LACONNER; AND THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF SKAGIT, THAT THE 1992 FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT, A COPY OF WHICH IS ATTACHED HERETO, IS HEREBY REPEALED AND ANNULLED.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THE FOLLOWING AGREEMENT, TO BE KNOWN AS THE "2002 FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT", IS HEREBY ADOPTED.

SECTION I: PURPOSE

It is the intent of Skagit County and the Cities to cooperate in efforts to provide visionary leadership on regional plans, policies and issues. It is the purpose of this Agreement to enhance the ability of the parties to improve the present health, safety, convenience and welfare of their citizens and to plan for the future development of the Cities and the County to the end that the governments achieve a county-wide pattern of community-building, land use, and conservation that reflects the environmental, economic, aesthetic, and social values of city and county residents.

This Agreement will improve the collective ability of the parties to address pertinent issues in an integrated, coordinated and on-going manner, and to respond flexibly and intelligently to events that affect the welfare of city and county citizens. The Agreement also will encourage the effective design and implementation of appropriate tools—both regulatory and non-regulatory—that can provide the means to manage and direct growth in a manner that will achieve compliance with the Washington Growth Management Act.

To assist in accomplishing the above and other tasks related to developing complimentary comprehensive plans, it is the intent of Skagit County and the Cities to cooperatively support a planning organization as further described in Section 3 below, to recommend CPPs and thereby ensure the adoption of consistent comprehensive planning policies. The primary functions of such planning organization shall be to:

SKAGIT COUNTY
Contract # C20020423

Page 4 of 17

201404240098

Skagit County Auditor 4/24/2014 Page \$49.00 of 18 2:53PM

- Develop, as appropriate, policies for transportation, growth management, environmental quality, and other topics determined by the GMA Committee's Steering Committee;
- Provide agreed and accepted data and analysis to support local and regional decision making;
- Build community consensus on regional issues through information, and citizen involvement at the local level;
- Build intergovernmental consensus on regional plans, policies and issues, and advocate local implementation;
- Establish a mechanism to systematically and logically update the CPPs as necessary; and
- Develop procedures for siting regional essential public facilities that includes regional input.

SECTION 2: DISSOLUTION OF COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES COMMITTEE

The GMA Committee shall be the successor to the Countywide Planning Policies Committee of Skagit County, which Countywide Planning Policies Committee shall be dissolved upon the implementation of the GMA Committee by virtue of the execution of this Agreement and the filing of a copy of this Agreement with the Skagit County Auditor. Each City shall also file a copy of this Agreement with its respective city clerk.

SECTION 3: ORGANIZATION

The GMA Committee shall consist of a Steering Committee supported by a Technical Advisory Committee.

A. Steering Committee. The Steering Committee shall consist of the Mayors of each City, or a City council member designated by the Mayor, and the three Skagit County Commissioners. The Steering Committee shall develop recommendations for CPPs, including UGAs and residential, commercial and industrial allocations, as set forth herein.

SKAGIT COUNTY
Contract # C20020423

Page 5 of 17

201404240098

Skagit County Auditor 4/24/2014 Page

\$49.00

5 of 18 2:53PM

- B. Voting. Policy decisions, including the content of CPPs, should be arrived at by consensus. In the event unanimous consent cannot be achieved, decisions shall be made by a simple majority of the number of votes present, as described in Section 9, unless the issue involves a recommendation on a CPP or CPP amendment after dispute resolution, in which case, supermajorities of the number of population-weighted votes and of the jurisdictions present and voting at the meeting as described in Section 9 (G) shall prevail. Policy decisions concerning the alteration of any UGA boundary, or proposed change to any municipal UGA population or commercial/industrial allocation, shall not take effect until also ratified by both the City whose UGA is affected by the proposed change, and the County. The City whose UGA is affected by the proposed change, or the County, has the discretion to decline to ratify the proposed change, in which event the proposed change shall not take effect. There shall be no appeal from such decision to decline to ratify, other than an appeal if provided by RCW 36.70A.
- C. Steering Committee Meetings; Quorum; Rules. The GMA Steering Committee shall conduct regular meetings, as it deems necessary for the transaction of its business. At a minimum, the GMA Steering Committee shall hold one regular meeting per year and shall always provide a minimum of two weeks written notice to all members of any meeting of the Steering Committee. The GMA Steering Committee may adopt By-Laws for the transaction of business, but in any event shall keep minutes of all proceedings, including transactions, findings, determinations, and the number of votes for and against each question, and if any member is absent or disqualified from voting indicating the fact, all of which shall be filed in the office of the County Commissioners, and shall be public records. A majority of the members including the chairman or acting chairman shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business. All Steering Committee meetings shall be open to the public as provided in Section 7, below.
- D. Steering Committee Officers. The Steering Committee shall elect, from among its members, a Chairman and Vice Chairman, and any other officers that it deems necessary. The Chairman and Vice Chairman shall be one from the County and one from the Cities. In the absence of the Chairman, the Vice Chairman shall act and shall have all the powers and duties of the Chairman. The terms of the officers shall be for one (1) year.

SKAGIT COUNTY
Contract # C200204**

Page 6 of 17

201404240098

.

or 6 \$49.00 8 2:53PM

8kagit County Auditor

- E. Technical Advisory Committee. The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) is a staff committee consisting of the Planning Directors of the Cities and the County Planning Director and two (2) County Assistant Planning Directors. The Steering Committee shall direct the work of the Technical Advisory Committee.
- F. SEPA. The City whose UGA is affected and the County shall share SEPA lead agency responsibility pursuant to WAC 197-11-944 as to UGA Boundary changes and population and commercial/industrial adjustments as described in Sub-Section B of the this Section. Otherwise each jurisdiction will be responsible for its own SEPA review as necessary.
- G. Additional Members. Any City of Skagit County that is not a party to this Agreement shall also be admitted as a party to this Agreement when they complete the following steps: 1) Giving written notice of the intent to participate to all other parties to this Agreement, 2) Executing and adopting this Agreement, and 3) Agreeing to and complying with the rules of participation as set by the Steering Committee. Further, membership for purposes of voting shall be in the same proportion as any other "member" party to this Agreement, all as set forth in Section 9 below. In addition, compliance with this Section 3, Paragraph G, must be completed a minimum of two weeks prior to such additional member having a valid vote under this Agreement.

SECTION 4: TERM

The term of this Agreement is from November 1, 2002 through October 31, 2003, and shall automatically renew each year unless terminated as provided in Section 11 herein.

SECTION 5: POWERS AND DUTIES

The GMA Steering Committee shall have the following specific powers:

- (1) To adopt rules of procedure and bylaws, to regulate its affairs and conduct business, including the ability to establish minimum requirements for attendance at meetings by member representatives;
- (2) To hold public hearings and sponsor public forums whenever deemed necessary or useful in the execution of the functions of the GMA Committee;

SKAGIT COUNTY
Contract # C20020423

Page 7 of 17

201404240098

8kagit County Auditor 4/24/2014 Page

\$49.00 18 2:53PM

- (3) To participate with other governmental agencies, educational institutions, and private organizations in the coordination or conduct of its activities;
- (4) To advise the legislative bodies of the parties hereto, and to recommend to such legislative bodies proposed planning policies, including UGA boundary or allocation adjustments as developed by the Steering Committee;
- (5) To approve an annual work plan for the GMA Committee; and
- (6) To direct and supervise the activity of the Technical Advisory Committee.

SECTION 6: ROLE WITH LEGISLATIVE BODIES

Referral of Draft Documents. It is incumbent on the GMA Committee to refer issue statements, potential policy determinations, and draft policies to the legislative bodies of the member jurisdictions at the earliest possible time, to provide a meaningful opportunity for public comment, and to solicit input from the member jurisdictions' legislative bodies. Statements on policy formation should be provided by the Steering Committee on a monthly basis when discussions are taking place. The GMA Committee shall not substitute for or replace the duties and responsibilities of the legislative bodies of the member jurisdictions.

SECTION 7: PUBLIC RECORDS AND MEETINGS

- A. Public Records. As a joint project between the parties, all documents prepared for use by the GMA Committee shall be subject to Washington's Public Records Act. Requests to review records under that Act shall be addressed by the party receiving the request.
- B. Public Meetings. All meetings of the Steering Committee shall be subject to the provisions of Chapter 42.30 RCW, provided that the provisions of RCW §§ 42.30.120 and 42.30.130 shall not apply to meetings of the GMA Committee and the Steering Committee unless otherwise made applicable by Chapter 42.30 RCW.

SKAGIT COUNTY
Contract # C20020423

Page 8 of 17

201404240098

Skagit County Auditor

\$49.00 of 18 2:53PM

SECTION 8: PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

GMA obligates each member jurisdiction to include meaningful public participation prior to adoption of any plan or development regulation that may be the subject of a GMA Committee recommendation. Rather than replace these individual jurisdiction public participation processes and the resulting public input, it shall be the role of the Steering Committee to strive to balance any competing interests that may come out of the different public participation processes in making policy recommendations to its member jurisdictions.

SECTION 9: DISPUTE RESOLUTION

- A. This Section 9 only applies to the process for development of CPP recommendations, unless otherwise agreed upon in writing by the voting parties.
- B. Good Faith Efforts. The parties shall seek in good faith to resolve any dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement, and any policy, recommendation, statement of position, or other matter determined by the Steering Committee. In the event such dispute or conflict arises, the parties agree that, notwithstanding such dispute or conflict, the parties will make a good faith effort to cooperate in continuing to work toward the successful completion of the work program.
- C. Notice of Dispute. If in disagreement with any CPP policy recommendation of the Steering Committee, the disputing party or parties shall provide the Chairman of the Steering Committee with a signed written notice of such disagreement, identifying generally the nature and circumstances that caused the disagreement.
- D. Invocation of Alternative Dispute Resolution ("ADR"). If the disagreement is not resolved to the disputing party's satisfaction within 60 calendar days of submitting the written statement, the disputing party may invoke non-binding ADR procedures as set forth below.
- E. Cost of ADR. The parties agree that the cost of any ADR procedures shall be borne one-half by the disputing party or parties, and the other half by the GMA Committee, with each party bearing its own preparation costs. The GMA Committee cost shall be allocated to those

SKAGIT COUNTY Contract # C2002042?

Page 9 of 17

201404240098

Skagit County Auditor 4/24/2014 Page

\$49.00 2:53PM parties which are not disputing the issue(s) based on the population weighted formula set-forth in Section 9, paragraph G.

F. ADR Procedures.

- (1) Selection of Mediator. The parties shall agree on a mediator. If the parties cannot agree on a mediator, the parties shall request, in writing, an appointment of a mediator by the presiding judge of Skagit County Superior Court.
- (2) Rules. Mediation. The method and rules for any ADR procedure shall be as agreed by the parties or, if the parties cannot agree, mediation shall be administered in a manner determined by the mediator.
- (3) Location. All mediation proceedings shall be conducted within Skagit County unless otherwise mutually agreed upon, in writing, by the parties.
- G. Failure of Mediation. In the event that mediation does not result in an acceptable settlement within 90 days from the selection of a mediator, the Steering Committee is authorized to take a final binding vote as follows:
 - (1) Each jurisdiction represented on the Steering Committee is authorized the number of votes equal to its most recent official population estimate provided by the State Office of Fiscal Management, provided that the County shall be authorized the number of votes corresponding to the total population of the County less the population of the incorporated Cities within the County;
 - (2) In the case of the County, for purposes of the population-weighted vote, each voting member is allocated an equal portion of the number of votes equal to the most recent official population estimate for unincorporated Skagit County provided by the State Office of Fiscal Management. To illustrate, if all three County Steering Committee representatives participate in any vote, then the three representatives shall each represent one third of the County's population. If two County Steering Committee representatives participate in any vote, then each shall represent one-half of the County's population. For purposes of determining

SKAGIT COUNTY
Contract # C20020423

Page 10 of 17

201404240098

10 of

Skagit County Auditor 4/24/2014 Page

\$49.00 2:53PM

18

the County's vote (s) by jurisdiction, each County Steering Committee representative casting a vote shall be considered a single "jurisdiction"; and

- A supermajority of 75% of the number of votes present at the meeting shall be required to pass the recommendation.
- Additionally, no such recommendation shall pass unless it receives the affirmative vote of at least sixty percent (60%) of the jurisdictions present and voting on the question.
- If either the 75% super majority or the concurrence of 60% of the voting jurisdictions cannot be achieved, no Steering Committee recommendation shall be forwarded to the Board of County Commissioners and no County Commissioner action shall be taken on that particular CPP issue.
- H. The time periods specified in this Section 9 may be shortened, if necessary, to meet any compliance deadline imposed by a decision of the Growth Management Hearings Board, the courts or the State Legislature.

SECTION 10: CPP ADOPTION

Adoption of any new CPP or Amendment to an existing CPP shall follow the procedures set-forth herein, in particular those procedures set-forth in Sections 3 and 9, culminating in adoption by the Board of County Commissioners. The Board of County Commissions has the discretion to decline to adopt any specific set of CPP Amendments proposed by the GMA Steering Committee, but may not change the proposed CPP or CPP Amendments in any manner whatsoever, Nothing in this Agreement shall serve as a waiver of any party's right to an appeal as provided by RCW 36.70A and/or WAC 197-11.

SECTION 11: WITHDRAWAL; TERMINATION

- A. Withdrawal. Any party to this Agreement may withdraw from this Agreement, by providing 60 day's written notice to the remaining parties. Any withdrawing party shall remain liable for costs incurred by the Committee until the effective date of withdrawal.
- B. Termination. The parties hereto may terminate this Agreement at any time by unanimous vote of the parties.

SKAGIT COUNTY Contract # C20020423

Skagit County Auditor

\$49,00

4/24/2014 Page

11 of

18 2:53PM

SECTION 12: GENERAL PROVISIONS

- A. Property: No real property shall be acquired pursuant to this Agreement.
- B. Incorporation of Recitals. The recitals of this Agreement are incorporated into this Agreement, and each party hereto acknowledges and confirms the truth and accuracy of the recitals.
- C. Interpretation. This Agreement shall be construed under and in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington, and all obligations of the parties created by this Agreement are performable in Skagit County, Washington.
- D. Authority. This Agreement is entered into by the duly authorized officials of each respective governmental entity. Each person signing this Agreement on behalf of a party hereby confirms for the benefit of each of the other parties to this Agreement that any requisite approvals from the governing body of such party have been obtained, and all prerequisites to the execution, delivery and performance hereof have been obtained by or on behalf of that party.
- E. Renegotiation. In case any one or more of the provisions hereof should be held to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable in any respect, the parties agree to make a good faith effort to renegotiate another agreement to fulfill the purpose and intent of the present Agreement.
- F. Invalid Clause. If any material provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable in any respect, this entire Agreement shall be held invalid, subject to Section 13 herein. If such occurs, then the parties agree to renegotiate this Agreement in good faith. If the illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision is not material, such illegality, invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been included in this Agreement.
- G. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement among the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes any prior understandings or written or oral agreements between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. No amendment, modification or alteration of the terms of the

SKAGIT COUNTY
Contract # 020020423

Page 12 of 17

201404240098

Skagit County Auditor

4/24/2014 Page

\$49.00 12 of 18 2:53PM Agreement shall be binding on any party unless the same is in writing, dated subsequent to the date hereof, and is duly executed by the party against whom enforcement is sought.

- H. Notices. Any notice permitted or required under the terms hereof shall be in writing and shall be deemed delivered three days following the deposit of the same, properly addressed and with postage prepaid, into the care and custody of the United States Postal Service, by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, to the respective Participant to whom notice is to be given, at the party's customary business address with a copy to the County Prosecutor.
- 1. Recordation. A copy of this Agreement shall be filed with the County Auditor and with the city clerk of each jurisdiction adopting this Agreement, with each party to bear its own costs of such filing, provided that such filing shall not be a condition precedent to the enforcement of this Agreement.

SECTION 13: REVOCATION OF AGREEMENT

The Framework Agreement, dated January 13, 1992, is revoked. This Section shall survive, notwithstanding Section 12, paragraph F, above, such that In the event this Agreement is ever held to be Invalid, such a ruling shall not have the effect of reinstating the January 13, 1992, Framework Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this document as of the day and year first above written.

SKAGIT COUNTY
Contract # C20020423

and the same of the

Page 13 of 17

20140424008

Skagit County Auditor 4/24/2014 Page

\$49.00 of 18 2:53PM DATED: NOV. 26, 200 2

SKAGIT COUNTY:

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS SKAGIT COUNTY, WASHINGTON

By: Don Munks, Chairman

By: Kenneth A. Dahlstedt, Commissioner

By: Ted W. Anderson, Commissioner

ATTEST:

Joanne Giesbrecht, Clerk

Skagit)County Board of Commissioners

Approved as to form;

JOHN R. MOFFAT Chief Civil Deputy

> 5KAGIT COUNTY Contract # C20020423

> > Page 14 of 17

8kagit County Auditor 4/24/2014 Page \$49.00 14 of 18 2:53PM

CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY:

	By. GHARON BILLON, Mayor
ATTEST:	
By: PATSY NELSON, Clerk	
Approved as to form: PATRICK HAYDEN Sedro Woolley City Attorney	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
DATED: 11-14-02	CITY OF MOUNT VERNON: By: SKYE RICHENDREER, Mayor
ATTEST: HALLES BY: MARK KNOWLES Finance Director	
Approved as to form. SCOTT THOMAS Mount Vernon City Attorney	201404240098 1 Skegit County Auditor \$48.00
.#. #D	4/24/2014 Page 15 of 18 2:53PM

SKAGIT COUNTY
Contract # C20020423

Page 15 of 17

	CITY OF ANACORTES:
DATED: ///4/02	H. Dean (Maxwell, Mayor
ATTEST: By: City, Clerk Approved as to form: JAN MUNCE Anacortes City Attorney	
DATED: 10/14/02	CITY OF BURLINGTON: By: ROGER Gus" TJEERDSMA,
Attest: By: RICHARD A. PATRICK Finance Director	
Approved as to form; MARILYM NITTEBERG Burlington City Attorney	
(Anacortes & Burlin	ngton's signature page)

SKAGIT COUNTY Contract # C20020423

Skagit County Auditor

\$49.00

4/24/2014 Page

16 of 18 2:53PM

TOWN OF LACONNER:

DATED: 11-08-02

BY: ERON BERG, Mayor

ATTEST:

Clerk

Approved as to form:

BRADFORD FURLONG LaConner Town Attorney

STATE OF WASHINGTON) SS

I. Auditor of Skagil County, State of Washington, do hereby certify that the foregoing instrument is a true and correct copy of the original now on file in my office.

IN WITNESS WHEREOFT hyperunto set my hend and seet of

(LaConner's signature page)

SKAGIT COUNTY Contract # C20020423

Skagit County Auditor 4/24/2014 Page

17 of

\$49.00 18 2:53PM

2002 FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT -- ADDENDUM A

DATED: April

1

TOWN OF HAMILTON:

JOAN CROMLEY, Mayor

ATTEST:

Omgela Evans, Clerk

SPATE OF WASHINGTON) SS

my office the

I. Auditor of Sandif County, State of Washington, do hereby certify that the foregoins, testiment is a true and correct copy of the original are on the many off as.

IN WITNESS IS HEFFELD INSTRUMENT SET THE hard and account.

(Hamilton's signature page)

SKAGIT COUNTY Contract # C20020423 Addendum A

Skagit County Auditor 4/24/2014 Page

1B of

\$49.00 18 2:53PM

2002 FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT - ADDENDUM B

TOWN OF GONCRETE: By: JASON MILLER, Mayor APPROVED AS TO FORM: By: DAVID DAY, Town Attorney STATE OF WASHINGTON) SS I, Auditor of Stragit County, State of Washington, do hereby certify that the foregoing instrument is a true and correct copy of the original new on file in my office.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I persunto set my hand and seel of my office the Deputy

> SKAGIT COUNTY Contract # C20020423 Addendum A

(Concrete's signature page)

2002 FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT - ADDENDUM B

DATED: 5-8-18

BY: EDWARD E HILLS, MAYOR

ATTEST:

DEBORA E BOYD. CLERK

Town of Lyman's Signature Page

SKAGIT COUNTY CONTRACT # C20020423 ADDENDUM A